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Workplace Health and Safety (WHS) RFA Amendment #2 Questions and Answers 

Updated 1/6/2016 

NOTE: All Question and Answers have been amended on November 3, 2016 to reflect the issuance of a 2nd 
Amendment to the Request for Applications (RFA). The solicitation was amended to integrate fully the 
application process into the Grants Gateway grants management system.  After November 4, 2016, all 
submissions must be through the Grants Gateway system.  No submissions postmarked after November 4, 
2016 will be accepted.  Any applicants mailing an application with a post mark after November 4, 2016 will 
be contacted and requested to resubmit their application through the Grants Gateway system. 

(New questions and answers are listed below after the indicated revision date. Jump to the newest 
questions.) 

Q #1) What is the first step to applying for WHS funds? 

A #1) Interested parties must apply online via the Grants Gateway website at http://grantsreform.ny.gov.  
The first step is to register and pre-qualify with the Grants Gateway system in order to enter into a 
contract with New York State. Follow the instructions at 
https://grantsgateway.ny.gov/IntelliGrants_NYSGG/module/nysgg/goportal.aspx. 

Q #2) If we currently have an award through the Hazard Abatement Board (HAB)’s 2016-2017 
Occupational Safety and Health Training and Education Grant program, can we also apply under 
this WHS RFA? 

A #2) Yes. Awardees for the HAB’s 2016-2017 Occupational Safety and Health Training and Education Grant 
program can apply to this solicitation as long as the application does not propose providing training or 
services to an individual or entity currently receiving services under the 2016-2017 HAB grant. 

Q #3) Are public K-12 school districts also eligible? 

A #3) Yes. Public K-12 school districts, as governmental entities, are considered non-profit by the Internal 
Revenue Service and are therefore eligible to apply. 

Q #4) I am a for-profit private business. Can I apply? 

A #4) No. Only not-for-profit organizations are eligible to apply. For-profit businesses can collaborate with 
not-for profit organizations. For-profit businesses can be part of a consortium that is funded 
through an application submitted by a not-for-profit. 

Q #5) As a for-profit private business, I would like assistance to prevent hazards in my work place. 
Can you help? 

A #5) Yes. While for-profit businesses are not eligible to apply for the WHS grant, NYSDOL’s Worker 
Protection Division offers free, on-site consultation and assistance directly to business. The 
Consultation Program maintains offices in Albany, Binghamton, Buffalo, Garden City, New York City, 
Rochester, Syracuse, Utica, and White Plains. For contact information or more detail about the 
Consultation Program, visit our website at: https://labor.ny.gov/workerprotection or you can email 
onsite@labor.ny.gov. 

  

http://grantsreform.ny.gov/
https://grantsgateway.ny.gov/IntelliGrants_NYSGG/module/nysgg/goportal.aspx
https://labor.ny.gov/workerprotection
mailto:onsite@labor.ny.gov
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Q #6) We understand that there is no compensation for training workers. However, we have contract 
trainers, some in remote areas of the state, who we pay to train workers. We need to make sure 
those contractors are up-to-date with current best practices. May we use grant funds for these 
contractors to travel to a central site for training and to be compensated for their time? 

A #6) Train-the-trainer sessions are an allowable use of funds (Section II (B) (1) of the WHS RFA). The fees 
associated with providing train-the-trainer sessions, like space rental or an expert’s speaking fee, are 
reimbursable. Trainee wages or stipends paid while workers are in training are not allowable expenses. 

Q #7) Hands-on demonstration and learning aids are the most effective training tools. May we use grant 
funds to purchase such demonstration and learning aids? 

A #7) Learning aids that are directly related to the proposed training are an allowable expense. 

Q #8) We provide respiratory fit testing for workers. Our method incorporates training at all times during 
the process. May we use grant funds for fit training? 

A #8) Yes. General or hazard-specific training on how to identify, evaluate, and control employee exposure to 
workplace hazards is allowable. 

Q #9) Workers are often exposed to environmental hazards that not even the business owners are 
aware of. May we use grant funds to test for hazards to generate information about how to best 
keep workers safe? 

A #9) Testing for hazards would be considered an environmental audit. Audit services are not a reimbursable 
cost under the WHS RFA. 

Q #10) What does “compliance measures” in this context refer to (page 4, item 2, 4th bullet)? 

A #10) A business cited by NYSDOL’s Division of Labor Standards as being out-of-compliance for workplace 
health and safety standards will develop a compliance agreement with NYSDOL which will stipulate 
compliance measures to be completed. The costs associated with measures to bring a business back 
into compliance with Labor Law are not reimbursable costs. 

Q #11) Is a notebook computer, projector, or an iPad that would be used for on-site training be 
considered equipment? 

A #11) No. A notebook computer, projector, or iPad is not considered equipment and is not an allowable 
expense. 

Q #12) May we use our own Word and Excel documents as long as they look the same as your PDF 
templates? 

A #12) Yes. Applicants may use their own file formats for their application as long as the Technical Section is 
organized in the sequence as described and does not exceed 15 single-spaced, single- sided, 8.5 x 11 
inch pages. The applicant agency must also include all required attachments, minimum requirements, 
and budget worksheets in order for the application to be considered. Grants Gateway will accept the 
following formats when uploading documents: Word, Excel, and PDF. 

Q #13) What if I wait to apply in January 2017? 

A #13) WHS Awards are contingent on the availability of funds. Applications will be reviewed and award 
determination will be made in the order in which applications are received. Interested applicants 
should submit their proposals early and not wait. 

Q #14) How will I know if WHS RFA funds are still available? 
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A #14) NYSDOL will review and update the funding availability every quarter. At the end of each quarter, an 
amended RFA with the revised funding amount will be posted in the NYS Contract Reporter, Grants 
Gateway, and on NYSDOL’s Funding Opportunity webpage. If funding becomes limited prior to the 
closing date of this RFA, the program will be suspended with adequate notice in the NYS Contract 
Reporter and posted on Grants Gateway and NYSDOL’s Funding Opportunity webpage. 

Q #15) What if I receive an award under the WHS RFA, complete the activities that I contracted to do and 
want to do it again for a new group of participants, can I re-apply? 

A #15) Yes. If sufficient funding and time remain, applicants awarded a grant through this RFA may re-apply 
upon fully expending the awarded funds and successfully completing the terms specified in their award 
contract. 

Q #16) What if I contracted to serve 25 people but I have only been able to serve 20? 

A #16) If the number of people to be served is not met at any time before or after an award is issued, the 
awarded level of funding will be proportionately reduced.  Failure to meet training goals can negatively 
impact the contractor in future funding applications. 

Q #17) Who would you consider to be “at-risk” of worksite health and safety hazards? 

A #17) Typically, low-wage workers are especially vulnerable to being “at-risk” due to situations such as 
isolated work environments, and language barriers. Industries with large percentages of low- wage 
workers and high accidents or violations of occupational health and safety hazards include but are not 
limited to: 

 Agriculture 

 Construction 

 Landscaping 

 Hospitality 

 Dry cleaning 

Participants will not be expected to self-disclose “as being at-risk” of hazards to receive training or 
services. Specific business(es) should not be indicated within the application. Applicants must only 
provide a description of the industry as well as the systemic health and safety problem(s) that will 
be addressed with the granting of a WHS award. 

Q #18) The attachments include an icon for e-signature. If we are unable to sign electronically, how 
should we present the original signature documents? 

A #18) All required attachments have been provided in a fillable form format. This includes the option of using 
an e-signature, if available at your organization. All attachments must be printed and submitted 
uploaded as part of the entire application, with original signatures. If your organization does not use e-
signature you may sign by hand at this point. The document must be signed and uploaded into the 
Grants Gateway system. All hard copies must be maintained with the organization and may be 
requested as part of contracting process. As noted in Section VII.C (General Requirements) “successful 
applications and portions of the RFA deemed applicable by NYSDOL will be made part of the contract; 
therefore, an official authorized to commit the company to a contract must sign the proposal.” 
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Q #19) In describing the Project Need, how detailed should the description be if we cannot include 
specific business identifiers? 

A #19) You should use broad industry categories in describing the project need. These can include but are not 
limited to: 

 Nail salons 

 Farming 

 Child Care 

 Cleaning 

 Home health care 

 Laundry 

 Restaurants 

 Retail 

 Construction 

 Landscaping 

 Car washes 

 Supermarkets 

 Janitorial services 

 Truck and waste disposal drivers. 

Q #20) My organization is located close to the state border and we have served people from other states. 
Can we include them in the target population? 

A #20) Any award must be expended on program activities in New York State on businesses and employees 
who plan to continue operating and working in New York State after finishing the training. 

Q #21) For the budget worksheet portion of the application, it states that I need to compare proposed 
activities with similar activities of two other similar providers. We are providing an activity that is 
only available through one available provider. How do I demonstrate this? 

A #21) If you contacted fewer than three providers, you must give compelling justification for your selection. 
Compelling justification would include the existence of only one available provider. 

Q #22) What is the MWBE Utilization Plan (Attachment 7 5) and do we fill that out for ourselves, or was 
that meant for a subcontractor that is providing the training or service? 

A #22) The Minority and Women Owned Business Enterprises (MWBE) Utilization Plan is a form required to be 
completed under New York State Executive Law Article 15-A which charges state agencies with setting 
employment and business participation goals for minorities. Every application that uses sub-contractors 
or can meet partial MWBE goals must include a completed MWBE Utilization Plan (attachment 7 5). If 
you do not plan to use subcontractors or cannot meet any of the MWBE goals, attach upload a 
completed Application for Waiver of MWBE participation goals (attachment 8 6). Additional information 
about New York State Executive Law Article 15-A can be found on the second page of the WHS RFA 
Attachment 8 6 or online at http://www.esd.ny.gov/MWBE/ProgramMandate.html. 

Q #23) Our proposal would not involve subcontracting for training or services. How do we fill out the 
MWBE Utilization Plan? 

A #23) You do not need to submit the MWBE Utilization Plan. Applicants that will not be subcontracting 
should instead complete and submit upload the Application for Waiver of Minority and Women-
Owned Business Enterprise Participation Goal (Attachment 8 6). Instructions for completing the 
Application for Waiver of MWBE Participation Goal are on the second page of Attachment 8 6. 

Q #24) Do I submit the Minority and Women Owned Business Enterprises (MWBE) Utilization Plan 
(Attachment 7 5) if I am submitting an Application for Waiver of MWBE Participation Goal 
(Attachment 8 6), as indicated as required documents? 

A #24) If you are submitting a partial waiver using the Application for Waiver of MWBE Participation Goal 
(attachment 8 6), you need to complete and submit upload the waiver and the MWBE Utilization Plan 
(attachment 7 5). There is no need to complete and submit upload a completed MWBE Utilization 
Form if you are not using subcontractors or are applying for a total waiver. In that case, complete and 
submit upload only the Application for Waiver of MWBE Participation Goal (attachment 8 6). 

http://www.esd.ny.gov/MWBE/ProgramMandate.html
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Instructions for completing the Application for Waiver of MWBE Participation Goal are on the second 
page of Attachment 8 6. 

Q #25) What is the Equal Opportunity Staffing Plan (Attachment 6)? Do we complete this or is that for 
the “contractor” who is providing the training or service? 

A #25) The Equal Opportunity Staffing Plan (EEO 100) is a requirement of the United States Equal Employment 
Opportunity Commission. You can find further information about this requirement online at 
https://www.eeoc.gov/employers/eeo1survey/whomustfile.cfm. Instructions for completing the form 
are on page 2 of Attachment 6 4. The contractor referred to in this document is the applicant. Please 
read the first paragraph, which indicates subcontractors may be required to complete the form at the 
request of NYSDOL, if the subcontract is over $25,000 for: 

 Construction; 

 Demolition; 

 Replacement; 

 Major repair; 

 Renovation; 

 Planning; or 

 Design of real property. 

New Questions as of 9/30/16 start below: 

Q #26) Is it correct that all businesses must complete the training by March 31, 2017? 

A #26) Yes. All training and services must be delivered by March 31, 2017. Any future funding is contingent 
upon the continued appropriation of funding within the 2017 2018 New York State Budget. 

Q #27) The application does not specify anything about grant size, how do we know if these are 
envisioned to be smaller grants (i.e. 5K) or larger grants upwards of 100K? And any other 
questions regarding size/scope of an application. 

A #27) The only limitation for grant size is that they may not exceed $200,000. 

Q #28) Much of our work is seasonal because migrant workers follow the crops. In NY, arrival of workers 
starts to ramp up in March and our heavy season runs into the spring and summer. What are the 
chances of the no-cost extension mentioned on page 5 of the RFA? 

A #28) Extensions are contingent on Federal action so the State cannot comment on the likelihood of an 
extension and would recommend that grantees not consider this in planning training timelines. 

Q #29) What kind of joint application is possible? What are the “rules”? What’s required of each 
“entity”? 

A #29) A joint application is allowed through a lead applicant applying on behalf of a consortium of entities. In 
a joint application, the lead applicant is responsible to coordinate and compile, from across the 
consortium, a plan to address the health and safety training and service needs and activities to occur at 
and by multiple businesses. The lead applicant will be the fiscal and administrative authority for the 
project and accepts the responsibility to meet all contract terms and conditions in ensuring the 
successful completion of the project as contracted. Sub-entities in the consortium are responsible to 
the lead applicant to ensure their portion of the contracted activities and must submit documentation 
demonstrating their commitment to the project and acceptance of roles as indicated in the proposal. 

Q #30) Is sub-contracting possible? How would it work? 

A #30) Yes. The process of sub-contracting is discussed in Section IV.B. of the Sample Master Contract located 
in the Grants Gateway system. – Standard Terms and Conditions, Attachment 9. 

Q #31) Who is actually reviewing/grading the applications? (e.g., what level of knowledge should we 

https://www.eeoc.gov/employers/eeo1survey/whomustfile.cfm
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assume about occupational health) 

A #31) NYSDOL staff from various divisions will be reviewing applications to the WHS RFA. All reviewers will 
have substantial knowledge of the WHS RFA parameters. 

Q #32) Would the following fall under “provide assistance”: occupational health testing/screening (for 
the purposed of a C-3 Medical Report Workers Comp); language access services; or case 
management/case navigation for individuals with workplace injuries? 

A #32) Funding is intended to fund training and services that would prevent injuries and illnesses from 
occupational exposures and conditions. The activities you describe are after an injury/illness has 
occurred and would not full under the assistance described in this funding opportunity. Language 
access services for the purpose of case/management/case navigation or assistance navigating the 
Workers Comp system is not covered under the funding. 

Q #33) Will we run into difficulties if we submit a big proposal fairly soon, and some smaller ones shortly 
after that? For the later ones, is it better to separate out ideas, or try to amalgamate activities 
into a larger proposal? 

A #33) At any given time only one application will be funded per entity. Entities may apply for themselves or 
as the lead applicant of a consortium of entities. Applicants awarded a grant through this RFA may 
apply for a second award after all training and services specified in the first contract have been 
delivered. Such awards are contingent upon the availability of funds and time remaining during the RFA 
performance period. 

New Questions as of 10/05/16 start below: 

Q #34) Is there a problem if we are a sub-contractor on one grant and a lead on another? If so, what do 
we need to consider? 

A #34) The WHA RFA does not prohibit organizations from being the lead applicant for one award and a sub-
contractor for another contractor’s award. However, each contract must be separate and distinct and 
no two contracts may provide training or service to the same participant. Further, the organization 
must consider its ability to successfully complete all activities and serve all participants as agreed to, 
both in the awarded contract and in sub-contract responsibilities. 

Q #35) What is supposed to be sub-contracted and what is a service that we put elsewhere in the 
budget? For example, is printing of materials a sub-contract or a service? Or something else? 

A #35) Activities, including project trainings or project services, to be provided by an organization other than 
the applicant are considered to be subcontracted. All such trainings and services to be provided by the 
applicant are to be budgeted in the appropriate budget lines to ensure activity completion (i.e., project 
training, project service Contractual). There are two other categories where non- project services by 
other entities should be provided - non-project contracted services and other operating expenses and 
other. Printing is included in the list of other operating expense examples that are not included under 
any other category and should be budgeted in the other operating expenses category. 

Q #36) If we use subs, do they have to go through the same registration and pre-qualification process as 
other non-profit orgs do? 

A #36) No. Subcontracts are not required to register and pre-qualify. – Standard Terms and Conditions 
(Attachment 9) Section IV (B) (1) of the Sample Master Contract, included in the Grants Gateway 
system, indicates the Contractor shall take full responsibility for the acts and omissions of its 
subcontractors. 
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Q #37) If the deadline for spending funds is pushed beyond March 31, does that mean we should budget 
for work beyond that date? Or does it mean that we can keep on going with what we've planned 
to do by the end of March, if it takes longer? 

A #37) Proposed trainings and services must be provided by March 31, 2017, and applicants should not 
assume any extensions in their submissions. Should funding be available beyond March 31, 2017, it will 
be reported in the Contract Reporter and contracts may be amended at that time. 

Q #38) Can "publicity" activities and materials be covered? For example, can we include radio ads that 
draw attention to the Clinic's services and/or activities funded under the RFA? 

A #38) Yes. Publicity activity and materials are allowed as long as publications provide information directly 
related to improving workplace safety and health. General publicity of the entity and/or other services 
that do not relate to improving workplace safety and health are not allowed under the WHS RFA. Note, 
all publicity must be pre-approved by NYSDOL communications office. 

Q #39) As part of the SUNY system, the Clinic is expected to provide the Research Foundation -- through 
which all our grants go, whether or not they involve "research" -- with indirect fees. The 
Foundation is used to taking a largish percentage as "indirect" fees. Can they do this under this 
RFA? If so, what percentage is expected or allowed? 

A #39) NYSDOL will consider a federally approved indirect cost rate, if it is properly documented and justified. 

Q #40) Does a community college need to register in the grantsgateway.ny.gov platform? Page 6 of RFA 
states all applicants must register in this system and the form must be signed and notarized and 
mailed to Gateway Administrators BEFORE THE APPLICATION IS SUBMITTED. Or is it okay that the 
Research Foundation is registered? 

A #40) The Research Foundation and the Community College are considered separate legal entities within 
Grants Gateway. Whichever entity is the applicant must register and submit the applicable forms 
application via the Grants Gateway system as described in the RFA. 

New Questions as of 10/11/16 start below: 

Q #41) Would allowable activities include training and education about Worker's Comp employer 
responsibilities and/or the rights of injured workers? 

A #41) Yes. 

Q #42) Are occupational health screenings allowable as part of a primarily educational injury-prevention 
program? 

A #42) Screenings are not considered an allowable cost. However, information obtained from screenings may 
be part of an educational program for the workers. The screening level could be incorporated into the 
training to discuss potential sources of exposure, what activities they participated in that resulted in 
the exposure and how to minimize and/or reduce that exposure by work practices and/or personal 
protective equipment. 

New Questions as of 10/17/16 start below: 

Q #43) How long will it take to receive notification that we’ve been awarded funding once the 
application has been submitted? 

A #43) The goal is to have the review and evaluation of individual applications completed within a 2-3 week 
timeline. 
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Q #44) While attempting to access the attachments for this RFA, I came across a problem. When you click 
on attachment 5, you get attachment 5. When you click on attachment 6, attachment 5 opens up 
again. Can you please tell me how to access attachment 6, of this RFA? 

A #44) Thank you for bringing this to our attention. The link to Attachment 6 has been fixed. 

Q #45) The RFA does not indicate whether applicants may include indirect expenses in their proposed 
budgets. Please advise if indirect expenses are allowable under this RFA, and if so, whether an 
indirect rate may be used. If an indirect rate can be used, please advise if there is a cap on this 
rate. 

A #45)  [Repeat of Q#39] NYSDOL will consider a federally approved indirect cost rate, if it is properly 
documented and justified. 

Q #46) Please provide clarification on the funding availability under this RFA. Page 3 of the RFA indicates 
that an amended RFA will be released quarterly, announcing updated/revised funding availability. 
Does this mean that $5 million or more will be made available on a quarterly basis? 

A #46) Up to $5 million will be available until March 31, 2017 for single award amounts not to exceed 
$200,000. As awardees that successfully complete the terms and conditions of their contract may 
re-apply if sufficient time and funding remain, NYSDOL will update the RFA in December to 
announce how much of the $5 million is still available for those who may want to re-apply. 

Q #47) Is there an expectation for the minimum or maximum number of individuals to be served under 
this RFA? Page 3 of the RFA indicates that “If the applicant reduces the number of individuals to 
be served at any time prior to or after an award is issued, the level of funding will be 
proportionally reduced.” Please clarify. 

A #47) There is no required minimum or maximum number of individuals to be served under the 
Workplace Health and Safety RFA. Once the award is made and a contract is entered into with 
NYSDOL, the applicant agrees to provide service to the number of individuals agreed to in the 
contract. Failure to meet the service goals can negatively impact the contractor if they apply for 
funding in the future. 

Q #48) Page 9 of the RFA requests that applicants provide an attestation that the organization meets 
certain minimum requirements. Should the attestation be in the form of a letter that is notarized? 
Please provide clarification on the expectations for the format for this attestation. 

A #48) If an applicant utilizes the fill able PDF format as established in Attachment 1 (Technical Proposal), 
the attestations are included in the first section as a yes/no checkbox. This document must be 
signed by an official authorized to commit the company to a contract. The minimum requirement 
attestations are included as part of the Grants Gateway online application.  The submission of the 
online application must be sanctioned by an official authorized to commit the company to a 
contract. 

Q #49) Would a proposal to disseminate health and safety information regarding PESH standards and 
best practices for firefighters be an acceptable target population, considering most firefighters 
have little or no knowledge of regulations, standards, alerts and guidance documents designed to 
keep them safe in one of the most dangerous jobs. Firefighters are at risk as a result of this lack of 
knowledge and the majority of these firefighters in New York are volunteers so they do not even 
qualify for a "low wage" category of worker, none the less, they are vulnerable and at high risk for 
injury or illness. 

A #49) Yes, that would be allowable. 
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Q #50) Are volunteer and career firefighters in NYS eligible participants for the RFA as an at risk worker 
population? 

A #50) Yes, both volunteer and career firefighters qualify as a target audience. 

Q #51) As long as the organization that is applying for the funds is located in NY State, can some of the 
training take place in a neighboring state, if the training is targeting workers employed in NY? 

A #51)  [Repeat of Q20].  Any award must be expended on program activities in New York State on 
businesses and employees who plan to continue operating and working in New York State after 
finishing the training. 

Q #52) On a related question, can a subcontractor be an organization that is based outside of NY State? 

A #52) Yes. Subcontracts can be with organizations that are based outside of New York State. 

Q #53) Is overhead/indirect cost an allowable expense on this project’s budget? 

A #53)  [Repeat of Q#39] NYSDOL will consider a federally approved indirect cost rate, if it is properly 
documented and justified. 

Q #54) Can eligible applicants use their federally negotiated indirect cost rate when preparing their 
proposed budgets? 

A #54) [Repeat of Q#39] NYSDOL will consider a federally approved indirect cost rate, if it is properly 
documented and justified. 

Q #55) Please advise what allowable indirects are allowed on this application. I have reviewed the RFA 
and do not see any reference to allowable indirects. Is it capped at a specific rate? Is it inclusive of 
the capped amount of $200,000? 

A #55)  [Repeat of Q#39] NYSDOL will consider a federally approved indirect cost rate, if it is properly 
documented and justified. 

Q #56) How long is the actual contracting period? According to the notice, the deadline for submission of 
a response to this RFA is ongoing until 1/31/2017 and funding expires on March 31, 2017. If a 
contract was awarded in early February 2017, this would only allow for six or seven weeks of 
funded service provision. Should the funding expiration date be March 31, 2018 rather than 
March 31, 1917? 

A #56)  [Repeat of Q#26] All training and services must be delivered by March 31, 2017. Any future funding 
is contingent upon the continued appropriation of funding within the 2017 New York State Budget. 

Q #57) Given the response to Q#33, "At no time will an applicant be awarded multiple contracts 
simultaneously. It is therefore recommended that applicants include all requested activities to be 
funded in one proposal”, can an applicant simultaneously be a subcontractor on another lead 
entity's proposal while also applying as the lead entity. The proposed projects for the subcontract 
and for the application we'll make as a lead entity are different. Can we do both at once? 

A #57)  [Repeat of Q#34] The WHA RFA does not prohibit organizations from being the lead applicant for 
one award and a sub-contractor for another contractor’s award. However, each contract must be 
separate and distinct and no two contracts may provide training or service to the same participant. 
Further, the organization must consider its ability to successfully complete all activities and serve all 
participants as agreed to, both in the awarded contract and in sub-contract responsibilities. 
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Q #58) Can you provide a summary list of previously funded workplace safety and health projects, with 
information on the type of project funded? 

A #58) Trainings topic examples from previously funded workplace safety and health projects include: 

 Lock out/Tag out; 

 Blood borne pathogen 

 Respiratory protection; 

 Emergency response; and 

 Confined space. 

New Questions as of 11/3/16 start below: 

Q #59) Is this something that our County can apply for? It does not look like we are the target 
population for the funding opportunity. 

A #59) Yes, local governments can apply as eligible applicants for the Workplace Health and Safety RFA 
includes governmental entities. The target population is employed workers that may be 
experiencing and/or are at risk of work site health and safety hazards. 

As of November 4, 2016, all submissions must be through the Grants Gateway system. The RFA can 
be found online in the Grants Gateway system at 
https://grantsgateway.ny.gov/IntelliGrants_NYSGG/module/nysgg/goportal.aspx. 

Q #60) With the issuance of Amendment #2 to the RFA, will I still have to provide a Technical Section? 
What about the Budget Worksheet? 

A #60) Technical Sections and Budget Worksheets are required for any applications received by mail. No 
applications will be accepted by mail post marked after November 4, 2016. With the issuance of 
Amendment #2, this solicitation is now available for applications to be submitted via the State’s online 
grant management system, Grants Gateway. The Technical Section and Budget Worksheet 
requirements from the original solicitation have been incorporated into the online application 
requirements. The list of required documents in Sections IV. (D) and VII have been amended to reflect 
the documentation requirements for submitting applications via the Grants Gateway system. 

Q #61) We will not have any contracts over $25K, so we should be exempt from having a plan and we 
should not have to apply for a waiver. How should we complete Attachments 5 and 6? 

A #61) New York State Executive Law Article 15-A is only applicable to contracts $25,000 or higher. Therefore, 
no MWBE forms/review would be necessary for any sub-contracts that are less than $25,000. 

Q #62) Can an applicant use grant funds to support the part of orientation trainings that includes safety 
related topics such as blood borne pathogens, lifting and transferring, chemical safety, and 
ergonomic issues. 

A #62) Yes. 

New Questions as of 11/8/16 start below: 

Q #63) In regards to the answer to Q #11, I thought equipment is not allowed, as per the second bullet 
point on page 4 of the RFA.  Is all equipment not allowed or only specific ones? If the latter, which 
ones? 

A #63) Equipment related to actual implementation of compliance measures, model practices, or any other 
enhancements, is not allowable under any circumstances.  Equipment related to providing trainings 
would be assessed on a case-by-case basis. 

https://grantsgateway.ny.gov/IntelliGrants_NYSGG/module/nysgg/goportal.aspx
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New Questions as of 11/18/16 start below: 

Q #64) In regards to the March 31, 2017 deadline, if a Train-the-Trainer model is proposed, do only the 
training activities to train the first group of trainees (who will then train others) have to be 
completed by this date; or do all the trainings, including trainings done by the first group of 
trainers to train the second and all subsequent groups, have to be completed by this date? 

A #64) Any and all training that is being funded by the WHA grant must be completed by the March 31, 
2017 deadline. Any future funding is contingent upon the continued appropriation of funding within 
the 2017 New York State Budget. 

Q #65) On page 13, Section 4, entitled “Work Plan”, indicates applicants can include a total of 50 
objectives, tasks, and performance measures. Would you please elaborate or give examples of 
these components? This seems high for objectives, tasks, and measures. 

A #65) The reference to a total of 50, objectives, tasks, and performance measures is to inform applicants 
of the Grants Gateway system limit. Applicants may provide anywhere between 1 and 50 objectives, 
tasks, and performance measures. 

New Questions as of 11/21/16 start below: 

Q #66) As a non-profit Public Library, could we apply for this grant? 

A #66) Yes. Public Libraries, as governmental entities, are considered non-profit by the Internal Revenue 
Service and are therefore eligible to apply. 

New Questions as of 11/23/16 start below: 

Q #67) As a part of our outreach, would we be able to include budget lines for printing our brochure in 
different languages as well as a language hotline for the Jan-March program period? 

A #67) Please note the answers to your questions can be found in items #Q #32) and Q #38) of the 
Workplace Health and Safety (WHS) RFA Amendment #2 Questions and Answers document located 
online at: https://labor.ny.gov/workforcenypartners/fundingopps/rfa-questions-and-answers.pdf. 

Specifically, the reimbursement of language hotline services is not covered under Workplace Health 
and Safety funding and the printing of publicity materials are allowed as long as publications 
provide information directly related to improving workplace safety and health. 

New Questions as of 11/28/16 start below: 

Q #68) Can WHS funding be used for our multi-language worker hotline which provides workers with 
help and information regarding workplace issues in eight different languages? 

 

A #68) Yes. 

New Questions as of 12/20/16 start below: 

Q #69) If we are awarded a grant in January 2017, we have to have all monies from this grant spent and 
all training/program design carried out and complete by March 2017? 
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A #69) [Repeat of Q#26 and Q#56] All training and services must be delivered by March 31, 2017. Any 
future funding is contingent upon the continued appropriation of funding within the 2017 New York 
State Budget. 

Q #70) Looking at the attachments, I do not see a PDF including the information from the Program Design 
and Work Plan – should these be completed by inserting the answer to each section below the 
point distribution explanation?  Or would you prefer this in the form of paragraphs where the 
reviewers will identify the information being graded? 

A #70) With the amended RFA issued on October 25, 2016 which change the application process to 
integrate fully the Grants Gateway grants management system, a separate Technical Proposal 
(Attachment 1) for Program Design and Work Plan was no longer needed.  The answers to these 
questions are saved to the Grants Gateway system in the boxes provided and reviewers access the 
information through the system to complete the evaluation process.  The boxes will expand to allow 
paragraphs to be entered. 

Q #71) I am currently in the process of completing the aforementioned grant application for occupational 
health and safety training funding. I was wondering if the proposed programs contained within 
the RFA have to have a certain completion date. In other words, when do the proposed programs 
for which funding is being requested have to be completed and results (pre and posttests, 
surveys, etc.) have to be summarized? 

A #71) [Repeat of Q#26 and Q#56] All training and services must be delivered by March 31, 2017. Any 
future funding is contingent upon the continued appropriation of funding within the 2017 New York 
State Budget.  If the award is funding the assessment or monitoring components of the program, 
such as pre and posttests or surveys and/or analysis of these tools, these must be administered 
prior to March 31, 2017.   

Q #72) In revamping our vulnerable worker outreach, it became obvious that our website is not 
accessible to many of the communities we need to reach. There is a lot of information on our site 
about work place safety and health and workers’ rights. Unfortunately, our current web host does 
not allow for us to include Google’s Translate widget. Would we be able to include migration of 
our website from Wix to a compatible wordpress web host in our proposal?  

A #72) Reimbursement of website expenses is allowed only where the primary function of the website is 
for the dissemination of worker health and safety information. 

New Questions as of 1/6/17 start below: 

Q #73) At the end of the first quarter, what is the current amount of funding that is available? 

A #73) As of December 31, 2016, there is $4,140,029 available under the Workplace Health and Safety 
Request for Applications funding opportunity. 

Q #74) Is there a provision for an advance to Not-for-Profits? 

A #74) Not-for-Profit entities that have a fully executed contract qualify for a 25% advance of which details 
will be discussed during contract negotiations.   


